          U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

                         H O U S I N G

Special Attention of:                   
Notice H 96-103 (HUD)

All Directors, Single Family Housing     
Issued: December 11, 1996

                                        
Expires: December 31, 1997

                              

Cross References:

Subject:  Streamline Refinance of Section 235 Mortgages and

          Subordination of the Recapture Lien

The purpose of this Notice is to clarify the Department's

procedures and to eliminate any misunderstandings over what is

expected on the part of local HUD Offices in the Streamline (i.e., a

no "cash-out") Refinance of Section 235 mortgage loans to Section

203(b) mortgage loans. The result will be a uniform policy toward

subordination of recapture liens in the context of such Streamline

Refinance transactions.

A conflict in instructions exists between the text of Notice H

 94-66  and Mortgagee Letters 93-3 and 96-13.  Notice H 94-66 [renewed

as Notice H 95-88 ] expanded upon language contained in Handbook

4330.1, REV-5 (para. 11-27).  The Notice says, at paragraph 1-24, in

pertinent part:

If subordination of the HUD lien on a property is in the best

interest of the Secretary, the Field Office may approve

subordination of the lien to enable the mortgagor to refinance a

first mortgage.... The Field Office may approve requests for

subordination of HUD's lien on a case-by-case basis, following

the procedure below.

. . . [T]he Field Office must review the mortgagor's financial

status to determine if the mortgagor has sufficient cash assets

to pay the recapture amount.  If the mortgagor can afford to pay

the recapture amount, the Department should not consider

subordination ....

 Mortgagee Letter 93-3 , in a section entitled Refinancing an Old

235 Mortgage to A New 203(b) Mortgage, contained the following

permissive language on Streamline Refinancing of 235 mortgages:

HSIS: Distribution: W-3-1, R-1,R-2,R-3-1(H)(RC),R-3-2,R-3-3,R-6,

               R-6-2, R-7-2,R-8
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In Mortgagee Letter 91-22 , the Streamline Refinance procedures

with and without an appraisal were amended to allow for the

subordination of the recapture mortgage to the new 203(b)

mortgage.

Any 235 mortgage can now be refinanced under these procedures

where the mortgagor can obtain a new 203(b) mortgage to refinance

their old 235 mortgage and have the recapture mortgage

subordinated. (emph. added)

The mortgagors are not subject to a face to face interview or a photo

identification and a credit report does not have to be obtained....

Existing junior mortgages including HUD's recapture mortgage can

be subordinated to the new 203(b) Streamline mortgage under these

procedures.

Finally, Mortgagee Letter 96-13  moved from the permissive

language of the earlier mortgagee letter to an absolute statement

regarding subordination:

Furthermore, if the Department has a junior lien that was part of

the original Section 235 financing, the Department will

subordinate the junior lien to the Section 203(b) mortgage that

refinances the Section 235 mortgage. (emph. added)

The reason for this change is embodied in the Department's policy

of strongly encouraging borrowers to refinance their Section 235

mortgages.  These loans are typically at very high fixed interest

rates.  The Secretary's best interests are served by streamline

refinances, from Section 235 mortgages to 203(b) mortgage loans at

lower, current-market rates, without a determination of the financial

ability of mortgagors to pay off the recapture lien. Engaging in such

an analysis of the mortgagor's financial assets delays the process of

streamline refinancing, and discourages refinance activity.

Currently, some Offices are following instructions regarding

subordination contained in the Handbook or Notice, while others are

operating in accord with policy statements in Mortgagee Letter 96-13.

This Notice revises and supersedes instructions
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in Notice H 94-66 , and establishes a uniform policy regarding

subordination of Section 235 recapture liens, as expressed in

Mortgagee Letter 96-13 . It should be noted, however, that this policy

pertains ONLY to the first Streamline Refinance from the 235 mortgage

to a new 203(b) mortgage.  Any subsequent refinancing should include

an analysis of the mortgagor's financial ability to discharge the

recapture lien.

I hope this information will be helpful in explaining the

position of HUD/FHA in regard to this matter, and will promote a more

uniform approach toward the streamline refinancing of Section 235

mortgages around the country.

                         Sincerely,

                         Nicolas P. Retsinas

                         Assistant Secretary for Housing-

                         Federal Housing Commissioner

